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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA  
 
 
 
 
 
 
HIGH TEK USA, INC., 
 
 Plaintiff, 
 
 vs. 
 
HEAT AND CONTROL , INC. and DOES 1 

through 50, inclusive, 
 
 Defendants. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Case No.: 12-CV-00805 YGR 
 
ORDER GRANTING IN PART AND DENYING IN 
PART MOTION OF DEFENDANT HEAT AND 
CONTROL , INC. TO DISMISS THE COMPLAINT 
WITH LEAVE TO AMEND  

 

Plaintiff High Tek USA, Inc. (“High Tek”) brings this antitrust action against Defendant Heat 

and Control, Inc. (“H&C”) alleging unilateral refusal to deal in the aftermarket for packaging and 

weighing equipment of food packaging and processing materials.  Plaintiff alleges seven causes of 

action:  (1) Violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1; (2) Violation of Section 2 of the 

Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2; (3) Violation of the Robinson-Patman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 13; and state law 

claims for (4) Intentional Interference with Contractual Relations; (5) Intentional Interference with 

Prospective Economic Advantage; (6) Promissory Estoppel; and (7) Unfair, Unlawful and Fraudulent 

Business Practices in Violation of California Business and Professions Code § 17200 et seq.  

Defendant has filed a Motion to Dismiss the Complaint on the grounds that this is a garden 

variety business dispute between a supplier and its former customer that does not implicate federal 

antitrust law.   The Court held oral argument on July 13, 2012. 

Having carefully considered the papers submitted, the Complaint, and the argument of 

counsel, for the reasons set forth below, the Court hereby GRANTS IN PART  and DENIES IN PART  the 

Motion to Dismiss WITH LEAVE TO AMEND . 

High Tek USA, Inc. v. Heat and Control, Inc. Doc. 35
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To state a cause of action for the offense of monopoly under Section 2 of the Sherman Act, a 

plaintiff must plead:  (1) the relevant market that defendant has monopolized; (2) possession of 

monopoly power in that market; and (3) willful acquisition or maintenance of that power through 

competitively unreasonable means, rather than as a consequence of a superior product, business 

acumen, or historic accident.  United States v. Grinnell Corp., 384 U.S. 563, 570-71 (1966).   

Charges of monopolization can only be judged in the framework of the relevant market, which 

has two dimensions:  the “relevant geographic market” and the “relevant product market.”  Newcal 

Indus. v. Ion Office Solution, 513 F.3d 1038, 1044 n.3 (9th Cir. 2008).  While the parties agree that 

the relevant geographic market is the United States, they differ on the scope of the “relevant product 

market.”  In the Complaint, High Tek alleges that the relevant product market is the purchase of 

Ishida parts.  Complaint ¶ 29.  In its Opposition Brief, High Tek adds two additional markets: the 

aftermarket for refurbished Ishida scales and the aftermarket for servicing Ishida scales.  H&C argues 

that the relevant product market is all food processing scales sold in the United States. 

High Tek alleges no facts from which it plausibly could be inferred that the relevant product 

market is the purchase of Ishida parts (the aftermarket for refurbished Ishida scales and/or the 

aftermarket for servicing Ishida scales)3 as opposed to all food processing scales sold in the United 

States.  See Brown Shoe Co. v. United States, 370 U.S. 294, 325-26 (1962) (“The outer boundaries of 

a product market are determined by the reasonable interchangeability of use . . . between the product 

itself and the substitutes for it.”).  This infirmity is fatal to its Section 2 Sherman Act claim.  United 

States v. E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., 351 U.S. 377, 391 (1956) (“where there are market 

alternatives that buyers may readily use for their purposes, illegal monopoly does not exist.”); see 

also Volvo Trucks N. Am., Inc. v. Reeder-Simco GMC, Inc., 546 U.S. 164, 180 (2006) (“Interbrand 

competition, our opinions affirm, is the ‘primary concern of antitrust law.’”). 

                                                 
3 In its Opposition Brief, High Tek attempts to explain why it believes that Ishida parts is the relevant market.  
For example, it argues that Ishida equipment is the “premium brand,” the “gold standard” of weighing and 
packaging equipment, that Ishida equipment is utilized by a majority of manufacturers and distributors of 
packaging equipment.  Facts not alleged in the Complaint will not prevent dismissal for failure to state a claim. 
Without deciding whether these additional facts are sufficient to state a Section 2 Sherman Act claim, the 
Court will permit High Tek to amend its Complaint to allege additional facts. 
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